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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
MEMBERS AND OFFICIALS

The Board comprises 12 elected members who are appointed by the three constituent Jocal authorities to serve on
the Board. Dundee City Council nominates 6 members, Angus Council have 1 member and Fife Council nominate
the remaining 5 members. Following the Scottish Local Government Elections that were held in May 2013 it was
agreed by the Board that Dundee City Counci! would continue to act as lead authority to the Board, and
consequently, the Council are required to appoint officers to serve as officials of the Board. At the end of financial
year 2013/2014, the Members and Officials of the Board were:

ﬁépresentmg Dundee Clty Council

Coungcillor Jimmy Black (Vice Chair)
Councillor Will Dawson

Councillor Ken Lynn

Councillor Bill Campbell

Councillor Tom Ferguson
Councillor Fraser Macpherson
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'ﬁéb_rgsehii'hé 'Angus Council

Councillor Sheila Hands ]

Representmg ana Council

A Cnnncll

Councillor Margaret Taylor {Chair)
Councillor Jim Young o o

Councillor Brian Thomson : F‘lfe N
Councillor Bitl Connor (o e Ty
Councillor Andy Heer I AR

Brldge Manager
Mr fain MacKinnon BSc, CEng, MICE {From g" May 2014: Mr Alan Hutchison BEngl
|

|

{Hons), MSc, CEng, MICE)

Engineer

Mr Fergus Wilson BSc MBA CEng, MICE MCIHT MAPS Dundee City Councul

s —— Bt 2pfrebe Seedsrerpbig s

Mr Roger Mennie LLB(Hons) anLF‘ Dundee C:ty Councﬁ - I
Ve asurer NS Sy s Tl Tt S v o R R o]
Mrs Marjory M Stewart FCCA, CPFA, Dundee City Council

C

Contact details:
Tay Road Bridge Joint Board website: www.tayroadbridge.co.uk

Bridge Manager Engineer Clerk Treasurer

Bridge Office c/o Dundee City Council c/o Dundee City Council ¢/o Dundee City Council
Marine Parade City Development Dept Corporate Services Dept Corporate Services Dapt
Dundee 50 North Lindsay Sireet 21 City Square 50 North Lindsay Street
01382-221881 Bundee Dundee Dundee
iain.mackinnon@tayroad 01382-433711 01382-434202 01382-433555
bridge.co.uk fergus.wilson@ roger.mennie@ marjory.stewart@
alan.hutchison@tayroad dundeecity.gov.uk dundeecity.gov.uk dundeecity.gov.uk
bridge.co.uk



TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

BRIDGE MANAGER’S REPORT

Organisational Changes

Councillor David Bowes, resigned from his position of Chair and Member of the Board in March 2013 and
a new Chair, Councillor Margaret Taylor was elected Chair of the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board at the
Board Meeting of June 2013. Councillor Jimmy Black was elected to the position of Vice Chair at the
same meeting.

In February 2014 the Bridge Manager tendered his resignation from his position with the Board and at the
Board Meeting on 3 March 2014 an Appointments Sub Committee was formed to deal with the recruitment
of his successor.

Management Arrangements with Scottish Government

During this period, the main point of contact with the Scottish Government continued to be the Trunk Road
and Bus Operations Team of Transport Scotland. Meetings have been held on a regular basis between
Board Officers and officers from the Trunk Road and Bus Operations Team to discuss financial matters
etc.

Contracts
Pier Collision Protection Works

The Pier Collision Protection Works which were completed in 2012 were entered into two separate
construction awards competitions — the British Construction Industry Awards (BCIA)} and the Saltire
Society Awards.

The scheme was shortlisted for the BCIA but unfortunately did not receive any award in the four
categories considered. However the scheme received a Commendation from the Saltire Society at the
awards ceremony held in Edinburgh in October 2013.

Dundee Central Waterfront Development

Contract 3 for the demolition and reconstruction of the remaining ramps was undertaken by Sir Robert
McAlpine with completion originally scheduled for autumn 2013, however due to delays the works were
rescheduled for completion in early 2014/2015.

In general the works provided few operational difficulties or delays to the travelling public.
SESTRAN Park & Ride Proposal

Approval has been given by the Board for the sale of the land at the Fife Landfall to SESTRAN at a value
determined by the District Valuer.

Traffic

Due to the on-going work to reconfigure the bridge approach spans as part of the Dundee City Waterfront
Development there have been prolonged periods where the traffic counters have been unavailable for use
therefore there has been insufficient data collected to provide meaningful comparison of traffic flows. On
completion of the reconfiguration of the bridge approaches the traffic counters will be reinstated and full
traffic figures collected for future reports.



One or both lanes on the bridge were closed on a number of occasions over the past twelve months. The
table below summarises the reasons and number of occurrences:-

Wind Wind Wind Works Breakdowns | Operational closures
speed > speed > speed > Full and Minor | Debris collection etc
80mph 60mph 45mph Closures | Accidents
Closed Cars No
to all Only Double
Vehicles Deck
buses
3 23 87 15 78 870

Over the period there had been 3 full closures due to winds exceeding 80mph and the number of wind
related restrictions had increased over this time compared to 2012/2013.

Also there were 15 full closures between 01:00 to 04:00 to undertake investigation works and
resurfacing/patching works on the carriageway.

Traffic restrictions were put in place on the evening of 15" September 2013 to facilitate filming of the BBC
series Silent Witness.

Staffing Issues

Staff Establishment

There has been no change to the number of permanent posts within the staff establishment which stands
as follows:-

Administration 5
Operational 15
Maintenance 14
Cleaner (P/T) 1
Tofal 35

Mo

Alan Hutchison

Bridge Manager

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board
15 September 2014



TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

TREASURER'S REPORT

Intraduction
This report is intended as a commentary on the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board's financial position, as presented
within the Statement of Accounts for the financial year 2013/2014.

Annual Governance Statement (see page 10)

This statement sets out the Board's Corporate Governance arrangements, explaining how the Board conducts
its business, both internally and in its dealings with others. The main components of the system are listed,
together with any significant weaknesses that have been identified and the remedial action taken.

Annual Remuneration Report {see page 12)
This statement sets out the remuneration and accrued pension benefits of the senior employee of the Board
and the policy context, in accordance with Scottish Government regulations.

Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts (see page 15)
This statement sets out the main financial responsibilities of the Board and the Treasurer.

The Accounting Statements (see pages 16 to 47)

Movement in Reserves Statement:
This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Board, analysed into
‘'usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure) and 'unusable reserves'.

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Account:
This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally
accepted accounting practices.

Balance Sheel:
Shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Board.

Cash Flow Statement:
Shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Board during the reporting period.

Notes to the Financial Statemenis:

These are intended to give the reader further information which is not separately detailed in the financial
stalements. They also include the Accounting Policies which set out the basis upon which the financial
statements have been prepared and explain the accounting treatment of both general and specific items.

Revenue Expenditure

The Tay Road Bridge Joint Board, at its meeting on 10 December 2012, approved the 2013/2014 Revenue
Budget. The final budget showed a break-even position. The projected General Reserve balance as at 31
March 2014 would be £1,160,581.

The Board received quarterly Revenue Monitoring reports during 2013/2014 in order to keep the members
fully appraised as to the projected revenue outturn position.

The following table reconciles the Revenue Budget approved by the Board on 10 December 2012 (as
adjusted) to the revised budget figures that are included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement shown on page 17. The actual outturn for 2013/2014 was a net overspend against budget of
£8,000 before the application of accounting adjustments and the detailed variance analysis is set out on page
8.



. ' : i - - . - - = : PMO
B -:.w_, 3} (1ot} - (ta1'1) aouejeqg 9AJ3STY |BIOUIE)
- ' . - - - . . - : ‘ PMyq
(1g1'1) (1a1'1) (191'1) eouE|eg anIesey [EIOLSS
S - 2 = i 2 . T : noyaq /(snid.ng) reloL
R ‘ : . . - : i _ sjuawsnipy
820'L 8z0°t 0L0'e (661) v (28L°L) Bununoasy apoD SH4l AW
(6) (v1) (s) (g) - - - - - = - sjuauisnipy 6| SYI
; . . T - . - ainypuadxg p swo2au;
6 {ri0't)  (gzo'L} S (oL0'e} 66l ¥} 182°'L anIsuaYBIAWOD (2101
- . . . - & . . selger] / sjessy uoisuad
(01) (0z1) (021) UO $05807 / SUIES) [BUBMDY
. . _ . . . i} R _ . S)9SSY paxid jo uoneneaay
- uo yaye( / (snding)
. _ 3 } . 82|A19G JO UO|SIAOId
6 (vv8) (es8) GLL {oLo'e) 661 B HHH_| 282"} - uo y1ayeq / (sniding)
Loz (60s't) (oL'y) = (oLo'e) - " z T = (002'1) awWwoau) Juels) oynadg-uoN
- = . ; ) ainypuadx3 P awodu|
{€) zL 6L 16 (s) (L) JusunseAu] 3 Bupueuly
. _ . ) 3 _ ainjpuadx3y
664 661 661 0l (o1) g swoour Supesado Jowo
(681)  v6E'E £8S'E 8 - . (v} (5) 181 5 gL't ainypuadx3 Jo 3509
14 o€ 274 - - O S - o [:¥4 = 2107 Jnesaowsa ¥ aelodion
& 182 282'L - = . - - 187'1 - - yauwuedw| 9 uonewaldag
(8t} £8 LEL . - = - . 2 {o1) bl sjuawied Aued payL
b 192 rad " c - - - . = v sjsoQ Hodsues)
(vL1) gz2 ove - - - . . - (91) ase seouag pue saddng
{r1) 0s ¥9 S - . . (s) - - 69 sjson Apedoid
{81) TAN €611 8 - . (¥) - 2 ; ELL'L 51500 ye1s
0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 o003 0003 coo3 0003
puadg {awoou)} jabpng sipy Jueic) sj@ssy 4o usawysnlpy  dx3 g oul uoljeso||y uoneaoje jefpng
(4epun) jpuadxg pesipey 6L SVl leiden  |esedsiq sjjjausg Auadoud uswiedw| -ay panoiddy
jd9A0  [ENjOY pasiu uo $so aaho|dwy JUBWIISIAL]  F 2107
-Booay  Jo{ujen) sjeao|e ucpejoaudag apesdsOWaSQ
1eN -y 19N g diod



Staff Costs (Underspend £18,000)

Mainly reflects posts that have been vacant for short periods during the year. In addition, expenditure on
overtime has been lower than budgeted following a reduction in the level of overtime worked as there were
relatively few contracts requiring bridge maintenance staff.

Property Costs (Underspend £14,000)

Reflects lower expenditure relating to electricity costs due to more efficient lighting in use. [n addition,
expenditure on navigation lights was lower than anticipated due to new equipment installed during the Pier
Collision Protection Works.

Supplies & Services (Underspend £114,000)

Reflects lower expenditure on insurance premiums due to a reduction achieved through a tendering process
and lower than anticipated expenditure on de-icing malerials due to favourable weather conditions.
Additionally there have been various underspends due to the fact that on-going capital contracts and restricted
access to the bridge due to the gantries being out of use have meant a reduction in the amount of bridge
maintenance work carried out during the year which has resulted in lower than anticipated expenditure on the
purchase of equipment and materials, plant hire and equipment maintenance.

Transport Costs (Overspend £1,000)

Reflects an overspend relating to harbourage fees due to the fact that for insurance purposes there is now a
requirement to berth the safety boat at Tayport when high winds are expected. This was partly offset by
underspends relating to fuel costs for the ganiries and safety boat as the amount of bridge maintenance work
carried out during the year was reduced.

Third Party Payments (Underspend £48,000)

Reflects savings relating to structural inspections, miscellaneous inspections and reports, and allowances for
professional fees relating to the cathodic protection system all of which could not be fully conducted as the
use of the gantries has been restricted.

Corporate and Democratic Core Costs (Overspend £4,000)

Reflects an increase in members’ allowances due to changes to the chair's and vice-chair's positions. This
increase was due to the fact that these positions are now both occupied by members who are not
remunerated by their respective councils as senior councillors.

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure (Underspend £3,000)
Reflects lower than anticipated expenditure on investment property.

Non-Specific Grant Income (Income Shortfall £201,000)
Reflects the net underspend on other budget heads, as detailed above. Any unused Revenue Grant (with
conditions} requires to be held in creditors so that it can be applied to match expenditure in future years.

General Reserve
There was a break-even position for the financial year 2013/2014. This gives a total General Reserve balance
of £1,160,591 at 31 March 2014, which is unchanged from the corresponding figure at 31 March 2013.



Capital Expenditure and Financing
During 2013/2014, the Board incurred capital expenditure of £356,000 on the following projects:-

£000
Inspection to Columns and Piers 15
Carriageway Resurfacing 20
Gantry 22
CCTV 6
North Approach Viaduct Remedial Works 166
Advanced Warning Signs 18
Other Projects _39

356
Capital expenditure was funded as follows:

£000
Capital Grant from the Scottish Government _356

=396

In addition to the above, £2.510m has been included within assets under construction at 31 March 2014 for

the remaining new on-off ramps which had been constructed by Dundee City Council as part of the Central
Waterfront Development.

Control of Revenue and Capital Expenditure
The control of both the revenue and capital expenditure of the Board is an on-going and substantial exercise

which requires a positive contribution from staff and elected members to ensure that the Board's financial
objectives are achieved and that financial resources are fully utilised.

Pension Liability (IAS 19)

Under IAS 19 (Employee Benefits) the Board is required to include figures in its Statement of Accounts
relaling to the assets, liabilities, income and expenditure of the pension schemes for its employees. It has
been estimated that the Board had a net pension liability of £2,228,000 as at 31 March 2014. The estimated
net pension liability at 31 March 2013 was £2,213,000. Changes in the underlying assumptions used to
calculate scheme liabilities have caused an increase in liabililies. This was partly offset by an increase in the
value of scheme assets, resulting in the overall net liability increasing by £15,000.

Acknowledgements

During the 2013/2014 financial year the Board's financial position has required continuous scrutiny and strict
budgetary control. | would like to thank the Bridge Manager, Bridge Engineer and their staff for their
assistance in controlling the Board's expenditure and income. In addition, | wish to mention my appreciation

of the help and co-operation provided during the financial year by the elected members and by Roger Mennie,
Clerk to the Board.

| would also like to extend my appreciation for the contribution made by the outgoing Bridge Manager, lain
MacKinnon, who intimated his resignation with effect from 18 May 2014 and would like to wish him well in his
future endeavours.

Finally, | would conclude my report by thanking all staff who contributed to the preparation of the Board's
2013/2014 Statement of Accounts.

M WM K esef]

Marjory M Stewart, FCCA, CPFA
Treasurer

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board

15 September 2014



TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Scope of Responsibility

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the
law and appropriate standards. This is to ensure that public funds and assets at its disposal are safeguarded,
properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently, effectively, and ethically. The Board also has a duty
to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way its functions are carried out.

In discharging these responsibilities elected members and senior officers are responsible for implementing
effective arrangements for governing the Board's affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its functions,
including arrangements for the management of risk.

To this end the Board has approved and adopted a local Code of Corporate Governance that is consistent
with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government. This
statement explains how Tay Road Bridge Joint Board delivers good governance and reviews the effectiveness
of these arrangements.

The Board's Governance Framework

The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, cultures and values by which the Board is
directed and controlled. It also describes the way it engages with and accounts to stakeholders. It enables
the Board to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and consider whether those objectives have
led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

The framework reflects the arrangements in place to meet the six supporting principles of effective corporate
governance. These are as follows:

» focusing on the purpose of the Board and on outcomes for the community and creating and
implementing a vision for the local area;

* members and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly defined functions
and roles;

* promoting values for the Board and demonstrating the values of good governance through upholding
high standards of conduct and behaviour;

» taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny and managing risk;

» developing the capacity and capabilities of members and officers to be effective; and

* engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public accountability.

Within the overall control arrangements the system of internal financial control is intended to ensure that
assets are safeguarded, transactions are authorised and properly recorded, and material errors or
irregularities are either prevented or would be detected within a timely period. It is based on a framework of
regular management information, financial regulations, administrative procedures and management
supervision.

The overall control arrangements include:

identifying the Board's objectives in the Service Plan;

monitoring of objectives by the Board and senior officers;

reporting performance regularly to Board meetings;

clearly defined Standing Orders and Schemes of Administration covering Financial Regulations,

Tender Procedures and Delegation of Powers;

e approved Fraud Guidelines which include anti-fraud and corruption strategies, and "whistle-blowing”
arrangements;

» setting targets to measure financial and service performance; and

o formal revenue and capital budgetary control systems and procedures.

Additionally, in order to support Chief Financial Officers in the fulfiment of their duties and to ensure that local
authority organisations have access to effective financial advice of the highest level, CIPFA's Role of the Chief
Financial Officer has introduced a "comply or explain” requirement in the Annual Statement of Accounts.
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Review of Effectiveness

Members and officers of the Board are committed to the concept of sound governance and the effective
delivery of Board services and take into account comments made by internal and external auditors.

In addition the Board have made a self-assessment of their own arrangements. This involved the completion,
by the Bridge Manager, of a 56-point checklist covering the six supporting principles defined in
CIPFA/SOLACE's Delivering Good Governance in Local Government. This indicated a high level of
compliance.

The Board's Internal Audit Service conforms with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and reports to the
Board. Internal Audit undertakes an annual programme of work, which is reported to the Board. The Internal
Auditor provides an independent apinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal control.

The Treasurer complies with the principles set out in CIPFA's Role of the Chief Financial Officer.

Continuous Improvement Agenda

During 2012/2013, Internal Audit conducted their programme of audits, including a review of Data Protection
and Freedom of Information arrangements in place at the Board. This identified the following areas where
further improvements could be made:

 Develop a Data Protection Policy; and
s Develop a Freedom of Information Policy.

During 2013/2014, Internal Audit conducted their programme of audits, including reviews of Health and Safety,
Risk Management and Business Continuity Planning, and Procurement and Creditors / Purchasing. These
identified the following areas where further improvements could be made:

s Update the Health and Safety Policy stalement;
= Devise a {esting programme for the Business Continuity Plan; and
= Revise the Office Procedures to ensure they are consistent with other Policy documents,

It is proposed that during 2014/2015 steps are taken to address the items identified in the Continuous
Improvement Agenda to further enhance the Board's governance arrangements.

The annual review demonstrates sufficient evidence that the code's principles of delivering good governance
in local government operated effectively and the Board complies with the Local Code of Corporate
Governance in all significant respects.

Marjory Stewart FCCA, CPFA Alan Hutchison

Treasurer Bridge Manager

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board Tay Road Bridge Joint Board
15 September 2014 15 September 2014

1



TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT
INTRODUCTION

The Board is required to prepare and publish within its Statement of Accounts an annual Remuneration
Report under the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Amendment Regulations 2011 (Scoltish Statutory
Instrument No. 2011/64), which came into force on 31 March 2011. The report sets out the remuneration of
the Chair and Vice-Chair and Senior Employees of the Board and accrued pension benefits of the Senior
Employees of the Board. The report also provides information on the number of Board employees (including
Senior Employees) whose total actual remuneration was £50,000 or more, this information being disclosed in
salary bandings of £5,000 above £50,000. The following report has been prepared in accordance with the
aforementioned Regulations and also in accordance with the non-statutory guidance set out in Scottish
Government Finance Circular 8/2011, issued on 13 May 2011.

The Board's External Auditor is required to audit certain parts of the Remuneration Report and give a separate
opinion in his report on the Statement of Accounts as to whether the Remuneration Report has been properly
prepared in accordance with the Regulations. Tables 1, 2 and 3 are subject to audit, and the remainder of the
report is subject to review.

REMUNERATION ARRANGEMENTS

Senior Board Members

The remuneration of Councillors is regulated by the Local Governance (Scotland) Act 2004 (Remuneration)
Regulations 2007 (SSI No. 2007/183). The Regulations set out the remuneration payable to Councillors with
the responsibility of a Chair or Vice-Chair of a Joint Board. The Regulations require the remuneration to be
paid by the Council of which the Chair or Vice-Chair is a member.

The Board has an arrangement with each Council who remunerates the Chair and Vic-Chair to reimburse the
Council for the additional costs of that councillor arising from them being a Chair or Vice-Chair of the Board.
The disclosures made in this report are limited to the amounts paid to the Council by the Board for
remuneration and does not reflect the full value of the remuneration that may be paid to the councillor.

The remuneration details for the Chair and Vice-Chair of Tay Road Bridge Joint Board are set out in Table 1.

Senior Employees

The salary of Senior Employees is set by reference to national agreements. The salaries of senior employees
of the Board take into account the duties and responsibilities of their posts. The Board is responsible for
agreeing the salaries of senior employees. All Board employees are entitled to participate in Dundee City
Council's Contract Car Hire Scheme, subject to meeting certain criteria. The Council's Policy & Resources
Committee is responsible for agreeing the terms of the Contract Car Hire Scheme.

For the purposes of the Remuneration Report, the Regulations set out the following criteria for designation as
a Senior Employee of the Board:

(i) has responsibility for management of the Board to the extent that the person has power to direct or
control the major activities of the Board (including activities involving the expenditure of money),
during the year to which the Report relates, whether solely or collectively with other persons;

{ii) holds a post that is politically restricted by reason of section 2(1)(a), (b) or (c) of the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989; or

(iii) annual remuneration, including any remuneration from a local authority subsidiary body, is £150,000
or more.

The Board has determined that one employee met the criteria for designation as a Senior Employee in
2013/2014, with the employee falling into category (i) above. The remuneration details for the Senior
Employees of the Board are set out in Table 2.

The Reguiations also require information to be published on the total number of Board employees (including

Senior Employees) whose total actual remuneration was £50,000 or more. This information is to be disclosed
in salary bandings of £5,000 above £50,000 and is shown in the following table.

12



No of No of
Remuneration Bands Employees Employees
2013/2014 201212013
£55,000 - £59,999 1 1
Total 1 1
EXIT PACKAGES

There were no exit packages agreed during 2013/2014 (2012/2013: None).

ACCRUED PENSION BENEFITS
Pension benefits for Local Government Employees are provided through the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS). The LGPS is a final salary pension scheme. This means that pension benefits are based on

the final year's pay and the number years that the person has been a member of the scheme. The scheme's
normal retirement age for Local Government Employees is 65.

From 1 April 2009 a five tier contribution system was introduced with contributions from scheme members
being based on how much pay falls into each tier. This is designed to give more equality between the cost
and benefits of scheme membership. Prior to 2009, contribution rates were set at 6% for all non-manual
employees. The members' contribution rates for 2013/2014 remain at the 2009/2010 rates although the pay
bandings have been adjusted. The tiers and contribution rates are as follows:

Contribution Contribution
Rate Rate
Whole Time Pay 2013/2014 | Whole Time Pay 2012/2013
On earnings up to and including £19,800 5.5% up to and including £19,400 5.5%
On earnings above £19,800 and up to £24,200 7-25% above £19,400 and up to £23,700 7.25%
On earnings above £24,200 and up to £33,200 8.5% above £23,700 and up to £32,500 8.5%
On earnings above £33,200 and up to £44,200 9.5% above £32,500 and up to £43,300 3.5%
On eamnings above £44,200 12% above £43,300 12%

If a person works part-time their contribution rate is worked out on the whole-time pay rate for the job, with
actual coniributions paid on actual pay earned.

There is no automatic entitlement to a lump sum. Members may opt lo give up (commute) pension for lump
sum up to the limit set by the Finance Act 2004. The accrual rate guarantees a pension based on 1/60" of
final pensionable salary and years of pensionable service. Prior to 2009 the accrual rate guaranteed a

pension based on 1/80" and a lump sum based on 3/80™ of final pensionable salary and years of pensionable
service.

Senior Employees

The accrued pension benefits for Senior Employees are set out in Table 3, together with the pension
contributions made by the Board.

Assumptions and Contextual Information

The value of the accrued pension benefits has been calculated on the basis of the age at which the person will
first become entitled to receive a pension on retirement without reduction on account of its payment at that
age; without exercising any option to commute pension entitlement into a lump sum; and without any
adjustment for the effects of future inflation. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the person
has accrued as a consequence of their total Local Government service and not just their current appointment.

In considering the accrued pension benefits figures the following contextual information should be taken into
account;

(i) the figures for pension and lump sum are illustrative only in light of the assumptions set out above and
do not necessarily reflect the actual benefits that any individual may receive upon retirement.
ii) the accrued benefits figures are reflective of the pension contributions that both the employer and the

scheme member have made over a period of time. In 2013/2014, the scheme member contribution
rate for Senior Employees of the Board was 8.4% of pensionable pay. In 2013/2014, the employer
contribution rate was 18% of pensionable pay for Senior Employees,

Marjory M Stewart, FCCA, CPFA
Treasurer

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board
15 September 2014
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

The Board's responsibilities

The Board is required to:

» make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers
has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Board, that officer is the Treasurer;

* manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets.
» approve the Audited Statement of Accounts.

The Treasurer's responsibilities

The Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of the Board's statement of accounts in accordance with

proper practices set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom ('the Code’).

In preparing this statement of accounts, the Treasurer has:
» selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
» made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;

« complied with the Code of Practice.

The Treasurer has also:
* kept proper accounting records which were up to date;
» taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the Board at the
accounting date and ils income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2014.

MM E e uset

Marjory M Stewart, FCCA, CPFA
Treasurer

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board

15 September 2014
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

This statemenl shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Board, analysed into 'usable
reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure) and ‘unusable reserves.' The Surplus or (Deficit) on the
Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing the Board's services, mare details of which are shown
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts required to be
charged to the General Reserve Balance. The Net Increase / (Decrease) before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line
shows the stalutory General Reserve balance before any discretionary transfers lo or from earmarked reserves

undertaken by the Board.

Balance at 31 March 2012
Restated

Movement in Reserves during
2012/2013

(Surplus) or deficit on provision of
services

Other Comprehensive Expenditure

and Income

Total Comprehensive Expenditure and
Income

Adjustments between accounting basis
& funding basis under regulations (note 4)

Net (Increase) /Decrease before
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves

Transfers to / {from) Earmarked Reserves
(Increase) / Decrease in 2012/2013

Balance at 31 March 2013 carried
forward

Movement in Reserves during
2013/2014

(Surplus) or deficit on provision of
services

Other Comprehensive Expenditure and
Income

Total Comprehensive Expenditure and
Income

Adjustments between accounting basis &
funding basis under regulations (note 4)

Net {Increase) / Decrease before
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves

Transfers to / (from) Earmarked Reserves
{Increase) / Decrease in Year

Balance at 31 March 2014 carried
forward

General
fund
Balance
£000

(1,161)

Capital
Grants
Unapplied
Account
£000

(5,220)

Total
Usable
Reserves
£000

{6,381)

Unusable
Reserves
£000

(57,416)

Total
Board
Reserves
£000

{63,797)

(9,451)

(9,451)

(12)

(9,451)
(12)

(9,451)

9,451

4.189

(9,451)

13,640

(12)

{13,640}

(9,463)

4,189

4,189

(13,652)

{9,463)

4,189

4,189

(13,652)

(9,463)

(1,961)

{(844)

(1,031)

(2,192)

(844)

(71,068)

{170)

(73,260)

(B44)
(170)

(844)

844

{144)

(844)

700

(170)

(700}

(1,014)

(144)

(144)

{870)

(1,014}

(144)

(144)

{870)

{1,014)

(1,161)

(1,175)

(2,336)

(71,938)

{74,274)

16



TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

This statement shows the accounling cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted
accounling practices.

Restated
2012/2013 2013/2014
Gross Gross Net Budgeted Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure Net Expenditure Income Expenditure
i (Income) Expenditure { {iIncome)
{unaudited)
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Expenditure
1,119 - 1,119 Staff Costs 1,193 1,175 - 1,175
51 - 51 Property Costs 64 50 . 50
221 - 321 Supplies and Services 340 226 - 226
35 - 35 Transport Costs 42 43 - 43
63 - 63 Third Party Payments 13 83 - 83
1,559 ~ 1,559 Depreciation & Impairment 1,787 1,787 - 1,787
21 " 21 gg:gtrrala and Democratic 26 20 _ a0
3,169 : 3,160  Cost Of Services 3,583 3,394 - 3,394
Other Operating Income &
211 {116) 95 Expenditure (note 5) 199 513 {314) 199
Financing and lnvestment
119 (32) 87 Income and Expendilure 75 93 (21) 72
{nole 6)
- (12802)  (12.802)  MNon-Specific Grant Income (4.710) - (4,500) (4,509)
(note 7)
(Surplus) or Deficit on o
3,499  (12,950) (9,451} Provision of Services (853) 4,000 (4,844) (844)
{note 13)
4 i 4 (Surplus) or deficit on . 5 : 2

revaluation of PPE

Actuarial (Gains) / Losses

670 (686) (16) on Pension Assets /[ (170) 218 {388) {170)
Liabilities -

674 (686) (12 Dther ang‘;’:::::;t"u‘:':e (170) 218 (388) (170)

4173 (13,636) (9.463) ol ang‘g:g::";‘;‘:fr:'e (1,023) 4,218 (5,232) (1,014)
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

BALANCE SHEET

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet dale of the assels and liabilities recognised by the Board.
The net assets of the Board (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Board. Reserves are reported
in two calegories. The first category is usable reserves, i.e. those that the Board may use to provide services, subject lo
the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital
Receipls Reserve that may oniy be used to fund capital expenditure). The second calegory is unusable reserves i.e.
those that the Board is not able to use to provide services. This category includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and
losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would anly become available lo provide services if the
assels are sold;, and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line
'Adjusiments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’.

31 March
2013
£000
73,175  Property, Plant & Equipment
62  Investment Propenty
73,237 Total Long Term Assets
47  Invenlories
35  Short Term Debtors
3,404  Cash and Cash Equivalenis
3,486 Total Current Assets
(1.250} _ Short Term Credilors
(1,250) Total Current Liabilities

{2,213)  Net Pension Liabilities

(2,213)

73,260

2,192

71,068
73,260

Total Long Term Liabilities
Net Assets
Usable reserves

Unusable Reserves
Total Reserves

18

Note

20
19

22
23
12

24

9

31 March
2014
£000

74,055
62

74,117

67
19
3,083

3,169

784
(784)

(2,228)

(2,228)

74,274

2,336

71,938

74,274

Marjory Stewart FCCA, CPFA

Treasurer

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board

15 September 2014



TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Board during the reporting period. The
statement shows how the Board generates and uses cash and cash equivalenls by classifying cash flows as operating,
investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the
extent to which the operations of the Board are funded by way of grant income or from the recipients of services provided
by the Board. Investing aclivities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are
intended to contribute to the Board's future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing aclivities are useful in
predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Board.

Restated
201212013 2013/2014
£000 £000
(9,451) Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services (844)
Adjust net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non
(3.125) cash movements (1,536}
Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the
11,203 provision of services that are investing and financing activities 2,971
{1,373) Net cash flows from Operating Activities 591
6,150 Investing Aclivities (note 10) (248)
) (26) Financing Activities (note 11) (22)
4,751 Net (Increase) or Decrease in cash and cash equivalents 321
8,155  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 3,404
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period
3,404 (note 12) 3,083
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Board's transactions for the 2013/2014 financial year and its position
at the year-end of 31 March 2014. The Board is required to prepare an annual Staternent of Accounts by the Local
Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 1985. Section 12 of the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003
requires that they be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise
the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2013/2014 and the Service Reporting
Code of Practice 2013/2014, supported by Intemnational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The accounting
convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain
calegories of non-current assets.

B Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Aclivity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received. In
particular:
. Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Board transfers the significant risks and rewards
of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefils or service potential associated with
the transaction will flow to the Board.

. Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Board can measure reliably the
percentage of completion of the fransaction and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential
associated with the transaction will flow to the Board.

. Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed — where there is a gap between the date
supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet.

. Expenses in relation to services received (including those rendered by the Board's employees) are
recaorded as expenditure when the services are received, rather than when payments are made.

. Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor
or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where lhere is evidence that debts
are unlikely to be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the
income that might not be collected.

c Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on notice of
not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents comprise short term lending that is repayable on demand or within 3
months of the Balance Sheet date and that is readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of
change in value. In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Board's cash management.

D Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or when the change
provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the
Board's financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively by
adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been
applied. Changes in accounling estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years
affected by the change. Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.
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E Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is debited with the following amounts to record the cost of
holding fixed assets during the year:

. depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service

. revalualion and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no accumulated gains in
the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off

The Board is not required to apply revenue grant receipts to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses.
Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses are therefore reversed by way of an adjusting transaction with the
Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

F Employee Benefits

Benefits Payable During Employment

Shorl-term employee benefits {lhose that fall due wholly within 12 months of the year-end), such as wages and
salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current
employees, are recognised as an expense in the year in which employees render service to the Board. An
accrual is made against Staff Costs in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services for the cost of holiday
entilements and other forms of leave earned by employees but not taken before the year-end and which
employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the remuneration rates applicable
in the following financial year, being the period in which the employee takes the benefit. Any accrual made is
required under statute to be reversed out of the General Reserve by a credit to the Accumulating Compensated
Absences Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Termination Benefils

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Board to terminate an employee’s
employment before the normal retirement date or an employee's decision to accept voluntary redundancy and are
charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate service or, where applicable, to the Non Distributed Costs line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at the earlier of when the Board can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits or when the Board recognises cosls for a restructuring. Where termination benefits
invalve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the General Reserve balance to be charged with
the amount payable by the Board to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, nol the amount calculated according
lo the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and
from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits

and replace them with debils for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable
but unpaid at the year-end.

Post Employment Benefits
Employees of the Board are members of a separate pension scheme being the Local Government Superannuation
Scheme (Tayside Pension Fund), a defined benefits scheme which is administered by Dundee City Council. The

scheme provides defined benefits to members {retirement lump sums and pensions), eamed as employees worked
for the Board.

The Local Government Pension Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:

. The liabilities of the Tayside Pension Fund attributable to the Board are included in the Balance Sheet on
an actuarial basis using the projected unit method — i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be
made in relation to retirement benefits eamed to date by employees, based on assumplions about
mortality rates, employee tumover rates, etc, and projections of eamings for current employees.

. Liabilities are discounled to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the indicative rate
of return on high quality corporate bond, iBoxx AA rated over 15 year corporate bond index.

. The assets of the Tayside Pension Fund attributable to the Board are included in the Balance Sheet al
their fair value:

o quoted secunties — current bid price
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o unquoted securities — professional estimate
o unitised securities - current bid price
o property — market value.
The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:
s Service cost comprising:

» current service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year -
allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to Staff Costs;

« past service cost - the increase in liabilities arising as a resull of a scheme amendment or
curlailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years — debited to the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs; and

¢ net interest on the defined benefil liability (asset), i.e. net interest expense for the Board — the
change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) thal arises from the passage of
lime charged to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement — this is calculaled by applying the discount
rate used lo measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to the net
defined benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of the period - taking into account any changes in
the net defined benefit liability (assel} during the period as a result of contribution and benefit
payments.

* Re-measurements comprising:

+ the retlurn on plan asseis — excluding amounts included in the net interest on the net defined
benefit liability (asset) — charged to the Pensions Reserves Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure; and

» actuarial gains and losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have
not co-incided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries
have updated their assumptions — charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure.

= contributions paid to the Tayside Pension Fund - cash paid as employer's contributions to the pension
fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Reserve balance to be charged with the
amount payable by the Board to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated
according fo the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there
are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement
benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts
payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures
the beneficial impact on the General Reserve of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of
cash flows rather than as benefits are earmed by employees.

Discretionary Benefits

The Board also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early
retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are accrued in the year
of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local
Government Pension Scheme.

G Events After the Reporting Period

Events aiter the reporting period are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the end
of the reporting pericd and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events
can be identified:

. those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period - the Statement of
Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events
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- those that ars indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period — the Statement of Accounts is
not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material effect disclosure
is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of Accounts.
H Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third parly contributions and
donations are recognised as due to the Board when there is reasonable assurance that;

. the Board will comply with the conditions attached to the paymenits, and
. the grants or contributions will be received

Amounts recognised as due to the Board are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account
until conditions atlaching to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify
that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution
are required lo be consumed by the recipient as specified or fulure economic benefits or service potential must be
returned to the transferor. Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which condilions have not been
satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is
credited to the relevant line (Non-Specific Grant Income) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. Where capila! grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are
reversed out of the General Reserve Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has vet to
be used to finance capital expendilure, it is posted to the Capital Granls Unapplied Accounl. Where it has been
applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amaounts in the Capital Granls Unapplied Account are
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied.

l Heritage Assets

The Board's Herilage Assels are held in support of the primary objective of increasing knowledge, understanding
and appreciation of the history of the Tay Road Bridge and the surrounding area. Heritage assels are recognised
and measured (including the treaiment of revaluation gains and losses} in accordance with the Board's accounting
palicies on property, plant and equipment. However, some of the measurement rules are relaxed in relation to
heritage assels as detailed below. The accounting policies in relation to heritage assels are also presented below.

The Board's heritage assels are accounted for as follows:

Heritage Assels Not Reconnised in the Balance Sheet

The Board holds herilage assets which, in light of the refaxation of measurement rules, are not recognised in the
balance sheet. The Board considers thal, due to the unique nature of lhe assets held and the lack of comparable
values, the cost of obtaining valuations would be disproportionate in relation to the benefits to the users of the
Board's financial statements. As a result, fair value information is unavailable and cost information is also
unknown. These assets are therefore not recognised in the balance sheet, however, detailed information regarding
them is held on relevant databases.

Herilage Assets - Impairments

The camying amounts of heritage assets are reviewed where there is evidence of impairment, for example where

an item has suffered physical deterioration or breakage. Any impairment is recognised and measured in
accordance with the Board's general policies on impairment.

J Inventories

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories
is assigned using the First-in-First-out (FIFQ) costing formula.

K Investment Properties

Investment properties are those that are used solely to eam rentals and/or for capital appreciation. The definition is
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not met if the properly is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production of goods or is held for
sale. Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the amount at
which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm’s length. Properties are not
depreciated but are re-valued annually according lo market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on
revaluation are posled to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal. Rentals received in
relation to invesiment properiies are credited to the Financing and Investment Income line and result in a gain for
the General Reserve Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory
arrangements to have an impact on the Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General
Reserve Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account.

L Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases. Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are
considered separately for classification. Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a
right to use an asset in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement
is dependent on the use of specific assels.

The Board as | essee
Finance Leases

Properly, plant and equipment held under finance leases are recognised on the Balance Sheet at the
commencement of the lease at fair value together with an equivalent deferred liability for the obligation to pay the
lessor. Where applicable, any initial direct costs of the Board are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Any
premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied lo writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as
expensas in the years in which they are incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:
= a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment - applied to write down the
lease liability, and

= a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Invesiment Income and Expendilure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement)

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the relevant accounting
policies applied generally to such assets e.g. depreciation, revaluation and impairment review.

Operaling Leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as an
expense. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the
patten of payments {e.q. if there is a rent-free period at the commencement of the lease).

The Board as Lessor

Finance Leases

Where the Board grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the relevant asset is
written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the lease, the carrying amount of the
asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the
Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or
loss on disposal. A gain, representing the Board's net investment in the lease, is credited to the same line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off
against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a lease asset in the Balance Sheet.

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:
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. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property — applied to wrile down the lease liability
(together with any premiums received), and

. finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement)

Operating Leases

Where the Board grants an operating iease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the asset is retained
in the Balance Sheet as a non-current asset and continues to be subject to depreciation, revaluation and
impairment review, in accordance with the relevant accounting policies. Rental income is credited to the
appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a siraight-
line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattem of payments (e.g., there is a premium
paid at the commencement of the lease). Any initial direct costs incurred in negotialing and arranging the lease are

added to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income.

M Property, Plant and Equipment

Assels that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for

rental to others of for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one financial year
are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.

Recognition

Expendilure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised on an
accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential associated with the
item will flow to the Board and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does
not add to an assel's potential to deliver future economic benefils or service potential (i.e. repairs and
maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred,

Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:

. the purchase price

. any costs attributable to bringing the assel to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operaling in the manner intended by management

The Board does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction. The cost of assets
acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the acquisition will not increase the cash
flows of the Board. In the latter case, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the
Board. Donated assets are measured initially at fair value, The difference between fair value and any
consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made conditionally. Until condilions are satisfied, the
gain is held in the Donated Assets Account. Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the General Reserve Balance to the Capital Adjusiment Account
in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

. infrastructure — depreciated historical cost

. all other assets — fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing use
(existing use value — EUV)

Where there is no markel-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an asset, depreciated
replacement cost is used as an estimate of fair value. Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are re-
valued sufficiently regularly to ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value at the
year-end, but as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation
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Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Stalement where they arise from the reversal of a revaluation or impairment loss previously charged to
a service. Where decreases in value are identified, the revaluation loss is accounted for by:

. where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying
amount of the assel is wrilten down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains)

. where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the
asset is written down against the relevant line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

The Revaluation Reserve conlains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its formal
implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account,

Impairment
Assels are assessed al each year-end as to whsther there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. Where

indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the
shortfall. Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:

. where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against that balance {up to the amount of the accumulated gains)

. where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the
asset is written down against the relevant line{s} in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been
charged if the loss had not been recognised.

Disposals
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an assel will be recovered principally through a sale

transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is re-
valued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to
sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease lo fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating
Expendilure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only
up to the amount of any previously recognised losses. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.
Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether
Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as parl of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from
disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stalement also as
part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal).
Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital
Adjusiment Account. Amounts received for disposals are categorised as capital receipts. Receipts are required to
be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital investment or set aside to
reduce the Board's underlying need to borrow (the capital financing requirement). Receipls are appropriated to the
Reserve from the General Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Amounts are appropriated to the
Capital Adjustment Account from the General Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assels by the systematic allocation of their

depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exceplion is made for assets without a determinable finite useful
life {i.e. freehold land) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e., assets under construction).
Deprecation is calculated on the following bases:
. buildings - straight-line allocation over the useful life of the property as estimated by the valuer.
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. vehicles, plant and equipment — straight line allocation over between 3 and 10 years.

. infrastructure — straight-line allocation over between 10 and 85 years.

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is significant in relation
to the total cost of the item, the components are deprecialed separately. Revaluation gains are also depreciated,
with an amount equal to the difference between current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation
that would have been chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

N Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Board a legal or constructive obligation that
probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. For example, the Board may be involved in a court case that could
eventually result in the making of a settlement or the payment of compensation. Provisions are charged as an
expense to the appropriate line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the
Board becomes aware of the obligation, and measured at the best estimate at the Balance Sheel date of the
expenditure required to setlle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties. When payments
are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet. Estimated setllements are
reviewed at the end of each financial year — where it becomes less than probable thal a transfer of economic
benefits will now be required {or a lower seltlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and
credited back to the relevant heading. Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected
to be recovered from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the
relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Board setlles the obligation.

Contingent Liabilities

A conlingent liability arises where an evenl has taken place thal gives the Board a possible obligation whose
existence will only be confirmed by the accurrence or olherwise of uncerain future evenis not wholly within the
conlrol of the Board. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made
but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the abligation cannot be

measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but are disclosed in a note o the
accounts,

Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Board a possible asset whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Board. Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but are disclosed in a note to the accounts
where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential,

o) Reserves

Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Reserve in the Movement in Reserves
Statement. When expenditure o be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate heading in
that year to count against the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Reserve Balance in the Movement
in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against grant receipts for the expenditure. Certain reserves
are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial instruments and retirement benefits

and these reserves do not represent usable resources for the Board. Further information an the Board's reserves
is contained in notes 8 and 9.

P VAT

VAT payable is included as an expense only lo the exient that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s Revenue
and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.
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Item

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the Board has had to make certain judgements about future
events. The key judgement made in the Stalement of Accounts relates (o the high degree of uncertainty about
future levels of funding for public bodies. The Board has determined that this uncertainty is not sufficient to provide
an indication that the assets of the Board might be impaired as a result of a need to reduce levels of service
provision.

ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE AND OTHER MAJOR SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the Board about
the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current
trends and other relevant factors, However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, aclual results
could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the Board's Balance Sheet at 31 March 2014 for which there is a significant risk of material adjustiment
in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

Effect if Actual Results Differ from
Assumptions

Uncertainties

Propenrty, Plant and Equipment

If the useful life of assets is
reduced, depreciation increases
and the carrying amount of the
assets falls.

Assets are depreciated over useful
lives that are dependent on
assumptions about the level of
repairs and maintenance that will be
incurred in relation to individual
assets. The current economic
climate makes it uncertain that the
Board will be able to sustain its
current spending on repairs and
maintenance, bringing into doubt the
useful lives assigned to assets.

Itis estimated that the annual
depreciation charge for property,
plant and equipment would
increase by £65,000 for every year
that useful lives had to be reduced.

Pensions Liability

This list does not include any assets and liabilities that have are carried al fair value based on a recently observed

market price.

Estimation of the net liability to pay
pensions depends on a number of
complex judgements relating to the
discount rate used, the rate at which
salaries are projected to increase,
changes in retirement ages, mortality

rates and expected returns on pension

fund assets. A firm of consulting
actuaries is engaged to provide the
Board with expert advice about the
assumptions to be applied.
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The effects on the net pensions
liability of changes in individual
assumptions can be measured.
For instance, a 0.1% increase in
the discount rate assumption would
result in 2 decrease in the pension
liability of £146,000.

However, the assumptions interact
in complex ways. During
2013/2014, the Board's actuaries
advised that the net pensions
liability had increased by £224,000
as a result of estimates being
corrected as a result of experience
and increased by £54,000
attributable to updating of the
assumptions.



4, MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT - ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING
BASIS UNDER REGULATIONS

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expendilure recognised by
the Board in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory

provisions as being available to the Board to meet fulure capital and revenue expenditure.

201312014 General Capital Grants Movement in
Fund Unapplied Unusable Total
Balance Account Reserves  2013/2014
£000 £000 £000 £000

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account:

Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement:

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current (1,787) - 1,787 -
assetls

Movements in the fair value of Investment Properties - e e e

Capital grants and contributions that have been applied to 3,010
capital financing

(3,010) -

Amounts of non current assels written off on disposal or sale (199) - 199 -
as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement

Adjustments involving the Capital Grants Unapplied
Account:

Reversal of unapplied capital grant and contributions - {144) 144 -
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

Adjustments involving the Pensions Reserve:

Reversal of items relating to post employment benefits {332) - 3az -
debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision

of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expendilure

Stalement (see note 15)

Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to 147 - (147) -
pensioners payable in the year

Adjustment involving the Accumulating Compensated
Absences Adjustment Account

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 5 - {9} -
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an

accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in

the year in accordance with statutory requirements

Total Adjustments 844 (144) (700) -
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Restated 2012/2013 General Capital Grants Movement in
Fund Unapptied Unusable Total
Balance Account Reserves  2012/2013
£000 £000 £000 £000

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account:
Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement:

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current (1,559) - 1,559 -
assets

Movements in the fair value of Investment Properiies (23) - 23 -

Capital grants and contributions that have been applied to 11,278 4,189 (15,467) -
capital financing

Amounts of non current assets written off on disposal or sale (97) - 97 -
as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Stalement

Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Reserve:

Transfer of sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss - - 1 1
on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital (1) - - (n
expenditure

Adjustment involving the Capital Grants Unapplied
Account

Reversal of unapplied capital grants and contributions - . - -
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

Adjustments involving the Pensions Reserve:

Reversal of items relating o post employment benefits (302) - 302 -
debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision

of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement {see note 15)

Employer's pensions contributions and direct paymenits to 145 - (145) -
pensioners payable in the year

Adjustment involving the Accumulating Compensated
Absences Adjustment Account

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 10 - (10} -
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an

accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in

the year in accordance with statutory requirements

Totat Adjustments 9,451 4,189 (13,640) i




COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT - OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND
EXPENDITURE

201212013 2013/2014
£000 £000
95 (Gains)/Losses on the disposal of non current assets 199
85 Total 199

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT - FINANCING AND INVESTMENT INCOME
AND EXPENDITURE

Restated 2013/2014
2012/2013 £000
£000
85 Net interest on the defined benefit liability (asset) 91
(22) Interest receivable and similar income (11}

23 Changes in the fair value of investment properties -
(9} Income & Expendilure on investment properties (8)
87 Total 72

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT - NON SPECIFIC GRANT INCOME

2012/2013 201312014
£000 £000
{1,524)  Non-ring fenced government granis (1,499)

(11,278)  Capital grants and contributions (3.010)

(42,802) Total (4,509)

BALANCE SHEET - USABLE RESERVES

Movemenis in the Authority's usable reserves are detailed in the Movement in Reserves Stalement and note 4.

BALANCE SHEET - UNUSABLE RESERVES

31 March 31 March
2013 2014
£000 £000

707 Revaluation Reserve 707
72,576  Capital Adjustment Account 73,456
(2,213) Pensions Reserve (2,228)

(2) Accumulating Compensated Absences Adjustment Account 3
71,068 Total Unusable Reserves 71,938
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Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Board arising from increases in the value of its Property,
Plant and Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:

« re-valued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost
+ used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or
= disposed of and the gains are realised

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the Reserve was
created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment
Account.

2012/2013 2013/2014
£000 £000
711 Balance at 1 April 707

{2) Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not -
charged to the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services

(2)  Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account -
707 Balance at 31 March 707

Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for
accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or
enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition,
construction or enhancement as depreciation and impairment losses are charged lo the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement. The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Board as finance for the
costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement. The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on
Investment Properties that have yet to be consumed by the Board. The Account also contains revaluation gains
accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was
created 1o hold such gains. Note 4 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account,
apart from those involving the Revaluation Reserve.
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2012/2013 201312014
£000 £000
58,789 Balance at 1 April 72,576
Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement:
{1.559) « Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current {(1,787)
assets
(98) o Amounts of non current assets wrilten off on disposal or (199)
sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
(2) Adjusling amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve -
(1,659) Net written out amount of the cost of non current assets {1,986)
consumed in the year
Capital financing applied in the year:
1 e Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital S
expenditure
15,468 « Capilal grants and contributions credited to the 2,866
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stalement that
have been applied to capital financing
15,462 Total Capital Financing Applied during the year 2,866
(23) Movements in the market value of Investment Properies -
debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement
72,576 Balance at 31 March 73,456

Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for
post employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Board accounts for
post employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by
employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions
and investment returns on any resources sel aside to meet the costs. However, stalutory arrangements require
benefils earned to be financed as the Board makes employer's contributions to pensions funds or eventually pays
any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a
substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the Board has set
aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the

benefits come to be paid.

Restated
201212013

£000

2013/20%4

£000

{2,072} Balance at 1 April

16 Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability / {asset)

(302) Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or

(2,213) Balance at 31 March

credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

145 Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to

pensioners payable in the year

(2,213)
170
(332)

147
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Accumulating Compensated Absences Adjustment Account

The Accumulating Compensated Absences Adjusiment Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise
on the General Reserve Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year.
Stalutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Reserve Balance is neutralised by transfers to or
from the Account.

2012/2013 2013/2014
£000 £000
(12} Balance at 1 April (2)
12  Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the 2 -
preceding year
{2)  Amounts accrued at the end of the current year 3 -
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the
10 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an 5
accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the
year in accordance with statulory requirements
{2) Balance at 31 March 3
10. CASH FLOW STATEMENT - INVESTING ACTIVITIES
2012/2013 2013/2014
£000 £000
17,430 Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property 2,762
and intangible assets
(1) Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, -
invesiment property and intangible assets
(11,279)  Other receipts from investing aclivities (3,010)
6,150 Net cash flows from investing activities (248)
11.  CASH FLOW STATEMENT - FINANCING ACTIVITIES
2012/2013 2013/2014
£000 £000
(26)  Other receipts from financing aclivities (22}
(26)  Net cash flows from financing activities {22)
12.  CASH FLOW STATEMENT - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements:
31 March 31 March
2013 2014
£000 £000
3,404 Bank current account 3,083
3,404 Total cash and cash equivalents 3,083



13. AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR RESOURCE ALLOCATION DECISIONS

Decisions about resource allocation are taken by the Board on the basis of budget reports analysed across
operational divisions. These reports are prepared on a different basis from the accounting policies used in the

financial statements. In particular;

« no charges are made in relation to capital expenditure (whereas depreciation and impairment losses are
charged to services in the Comprehensnve Income and Expenditure Statement)
« the cost of retirement benefits is based on cash flows {paymenl of employer's pensh}ns contributions)
rather than current service cost of benefits accrued in the year

The income and expenditure of the Board's operational divisions recorded in the budget reports for the year is as

follows:
Plant & Bridge
Divisional Income and Expenditure Admin Operations Equipment Maintenance Income Total
2013/2014 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Interest and investment income - - - - {21) {21)
Government grants - - - - {1,499) (1,499}
Total Income - - - - {1,520) (1.520)
Employee expenses 186 475 - 425 - 1,086
Other service expenses 247 4 134 49 - 434
Total Expenditure 433 479 134 474 - 1,520
Net Expenditure 433 479 134 474 {1,520) -
Plant & Bridge
Divistonal Income and Expenditure Admin Operations Equipment Maintenance Income Total
2012/2013 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Interest and investment incorne - - - - (34) (34)
Government grants - - - - (1.524) {1,524)
Total Income - - - - {1,558) {1,558)
Employee expenses 182 470 - 414 - 1,066
Other service expenses 245 5 179 63 - 492
Total Expenditure 427 475 179 477 - 1,558
Net Expenditure 427 475 179 477 {1,558} -

Reconciliation of Divisional Income and Expenditure to Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement

This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of divisional income and expenditure relate to the amounts
included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stalement

201212013 2013/2014
£000 £000

Net expenditure in the Divisional Analysis - -
Net expenditure of services not included in the Analysis - -
Amounts in the Comprehensive Income and Expendilure Statement not
reported to management in the Analysis 1,790 2,042
Amounts included in the Analysis not included in the Comprehensive Income
and Expendilure Statement 1,379 1,352
Cost of Services in Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 3,169 3,394




Reconciliation to Subjective Analysis

This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of divisional income and expenditure relate to a subjective
analysis of the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services included in the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement.

Amounts Amounts
not not
Operational reported included Cost of Corporate

Divisions to mgmt in CIES Services Amounts Total
2013/2014 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Interest and investment income 21 - - {(21) 292 271
Govemment grants and contributions {1,499) - - (1,499) {3,010} {4,509}
Total Income (1,520) - - (1,520) {2,718) (4,238)
Employee expenses 1,086 234 (147) 1,173 - 1,173
Other service expenses 434 - - 434 = 434
Depreciation, amortisation and
impairment - 1,787 - 1,787 - 1,787
Total expenditure 1,520 2,021 (147) 3,394 - 3,394
Surplus or deficit on the provision
of services - 2,021 (147) 1,874 {2,718} {844)

Amounts Amounts
not not
Operational reported included Cost of Corporate

Restated Divisions to mgmt in CIES Services Amounts Total
2012/2013 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Interest and investment income 34) = = (34) 216 182
Government grants and contributions (1,524) - - {1,524) (11,278) (12,802)
Total Income 1,558) - - {1,558} (11,062) {12,620)
Employee expenses 1,066 197 145 1,118 - 1,118
Other service expenses 492 - - 492 - 492
Depreciation, amortisation and
impairment - 1,559 - 1,559 - 1,559
Total expenditure 1,558 1,756 {145} 3,169 - 3,169
Surplus or deficit on the provision
of services - 1,756 (145) 1,611 (11,062) {9,451)

14. EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS

The Board has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts, certification of
grant claims and statutory inspections and to other non-audit services provided by the Board's external auditors:

Fees payable to Audit Scotland with regard to external audit services

carried out by the appointed auditor for the year

Total
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2012/2013 2013/2014

£000 £000
11 12
11 12




15.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES

Participation in pension schemes

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Board makes contributions towards the cost of
post employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Board

has a commitment to make the payments and this needs to be disclosed at the time that employees eamn their
future entitlement.

The Board participates in two post employment schemes:

e The Local Government Pension Scheme (Tayside Pension Fund), which is administered locally by Dundee
City Council and is a funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning that the Board and employees pay
contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended 1o balance the pensions liabilities with investment
assets.

= Arrangements for the award of discretionary post relirement benefits upon early relirement — this is an
unfunded defined benefit final arrangement, under which liabilities are recognised when awards are made.
However, there are no investment assets built up to meet the pensions liabilities, and cash has to be
generaled to meet actual pensions payments as they eventually fall due.

The Tayside Pension Fund is operated under the regulatory framewark for the Local Government Pension Scheme
(Scolland) regulations 2008 and the governance of the scheme is the responsibility of the Pensions Investment
Sub-Committee of the Policy and Resources Committee of Dundee City Council. Policy is determined in
accordance with the Pensions Fund Regulations. The invesiment managers of the fund are appointed by the Sub-
Committee.

The principal risks lo the Board of the scheme are the longevity assumptions, statutory changes to the scheme,
structural changes lo the scheme (i.e. large-scale withdrawals from the scheme), changes to inflation, bond yields
and the performance of the equity investments held by the scheme. These are mitigated to a certain extent by the

statutory requirements lo charge the Cost of Services the amounis required by stalute as described in the
accounting policies note.

Transactions relating to post employment benefits

The Board recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are eamned by
employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge the Board is
required to make against reserves is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post
employment/retirement benefits is reversed oul of the General Reserve via the Movement in Reserves Statement,
The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the
General Reserve Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the year:

Local Government Pension Scheme

£000
Restated
2012/2013 2013/2014
Comprehensive iIncome and Expenditure Statement:
Cost of Services:
+ current service cost 207 241
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
« net interest on the defined liability (asset) 92 88
e administration expensas 3 3
Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Surplus or 302 332

Deficit on the Provision of Services
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Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability comprising:

+ Return on plan assets (excluding amaunt included in
the net interest expense)

« Actuarial gains and iosses arising on changes in
demographic assumptions

e Acluarial gains and losses arising on changes in
financial assumptions

e  Other (if applicable)

Local Gavernment Pension Scheme

Total Re-measurements

Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Movement in Reserves Statement:

e reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or
Deficit for the Provision of Services for post
employment benefits in accordance with the Code

Actual amount charged against the General Fund Balance for
pensions in the year:

¢ employers' contributions payable to scheme

£000
Restated
2012/2013 201372014

(682) {216)
- 218
670 (164}
(4) (8)
(16) {170)
286 162
(302) (332)
145 147

e retirement benefits payable to pensioners

Pension assets and liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet

Local Government Pension Scheme

£000

Net pension assets as at: 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014
Present value of funded obligation 7.551 8,565 8,999
Fair value of scheme assets {5,561) (6,430) (6,838)
Net liability 1,990 2,135 2,161
Present value of unfunded obligation 82 78 67
Net liability arising from defined benefit 2,072 2,213 2,228
obligation
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Assets and liabilities in relation to post employment benefits

Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities (defined benefit obligation):

Funded liabilities: Local Government
Pension Scheme

£000

Restated

2012/2013 2013/2014
Opening balance at 1 April 7,633 8,643
Current service cost 207 241
Interest cost 346 350
Contributions by scheme participants 46 47
Re-measurement (gains) and losses:
o change in financial assumptions 670 (164}
o change in demographic assumptions - 218
Experience loss / (gain) on defined benefit obligation (4) (8}
Benefits paid {255) {261)
Cioslng balance at 31 March ‘“-_8,643 9,066

Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme assets:

Local Government Pension Scheme

Restated

2012/2013 2013/2014
Opening balance at 1 April 5,561 6,430
Interest income on assels 254 262
Re-measurement gain / (loss): return on assets less interest 682 216
Administration expenses (3) (3}
Emplayer conlributions 145 147
Contributions by scheme parlicipants 46 47
Benefits paid {(255) (261)
Closing balance at 31 March 6,430 6,838

The expecled return on scheme assels is determined by considering the expected retums available on the assels
underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed inlerest investments are based on gross redemption

vields as at the Balance Sheet date. Expected retumns on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of retum
experienced in the respective markets.

The actual return on scheme assets in the year was £478,000 {Restated 2012/2013; £935,000).

The liabilities show the underying commitments that the Board has in the long run to pay post employment (retirement)
benefits. The total liability of £2.228m is reflected in the Board's Balance Sheet. However, statulory arrangements for
funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the Board remains healthy. The deficit on the local govermment
scheme will be made good by increased contributions over the remaining working life of employees (i.e., before payments
fall due), as assessed by the scheme actuary.
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Basis for estimating assets and liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, an estimate of the pensions that will
be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc. The Tayside Pension Fund
has been assessed by Bamett Waddingham, an independent firm of actuaries, being based on the latest full valuation of
the scheme as at 31 March 2011.

The principal assumptions used by the actuary have been:

Local Government
Pension Scheme

2012/2013 2013/2014
Long-term expected rate of return on assets in the scheme:
Mortality assumptions:
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners (years):
Men 206 210
Women 229 23.3

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners (years):

Men 21.9 23.2

Womén 245 256
Rate of inflation (RPI) 3.3% 3.5%
Rate of Inflation (CPI) 2.5% 2.7%
Rale of increase in salaries 4.7% 4.9%
Rate of increase in pensions | 2.5% 2.7%
Raté for discoun.t.ing ;cheme liabilities “ 4.1% 4.4%

The estimate of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the table above. The
sensitivily analyses below have been delermined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at
the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that the assumption analysed changes while all the other
assumptions remain constant. The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases or
decreases for men and women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be
interrelated. The estimations in the sensitivity analyses have followed the accounting policies for the scheme, i.e. on an
actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the
sensitivity analysis below did nat change from those used in the previous period.

Impact on the defined benefil obligation in the Scheme:

Local Government Pension Scheme

£000 £000 £000
+0.1% 0% 0.1%
Adjustment to discount rate: . . .
o ﬁresent vaiue of total obligation 8,920 9,066 | Q,Zi 5
o Projected seﬁice cost | 227 233 | .240
Adjustment to long term salary increase: |
o Present value of total obligation 9,147 9,066 8,986
o- Projected ser\;ice .:;ost | - 237 233 230



Adjustment to pension increases and deferred re-

valuation:
o -Present value of total obligation | 9,136 9,066 B.QQ?
o Projected service cost 236 233 231
Adjustment to mortality age rating assumption: + 1 year None -1 year
o Present value of total obligation 8,732 9,066 9,404
o Projected service cost 225 233 242

The Board's share of Tayside Pension Fund's assets consist of the following categories, by amount and propartion of the
total assets held:

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2013 2013 2014 2014

£000 Y £000 Yo
Equity invesiments 4,565 71 4,855 71
Gilts 450 7 342 5
Other Bonds 707 11 889 13
Praperty 579 9 615 9
Cash 129 2 137 2
Total 6,430 - 100 6,838 100

Impact on the Board's cash flows

16.

17.

The objeclives of the scheme are to keep employers' contributions at as constant a rale as possible. The Tayside
Pension Fund has agreed a strategy with the scheme's acluary lo achieve a funding level of 100%. Funding levels are
monitored on an annual basis. The next triennial valuation is due to be completed as at 31 March 2014,

The Board anticipated to pay £138,000 expected contributions to the scheme in 2014/2015. The weighted average
duration of the defined benefit obligation for scheme members is 17 years (2013/2014: 17 years).

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

There were no events that occurred between 1 April 2014 and 15 Seplember 2014 that would have an impact on
the 2013/2014 financial statements. The latter date is the date on which the audited accounts were authorised for
issue by the Treasurer.

RELATED PARTIES

The Board is required to disclose malerial transactions with related parties — bodies or individuals that have the
potential to control or influence the Board or to be conirolled or influenced by the Board. Disclosure of these
transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Board might have been constrained in its ability to

operate independently or might have secured the ability o limit another parly’s ability to bargain freely wilh the
Board.

Central Government

Central government has effective control over the general operations of the Board. It is responsible for providing
the statulory framework within which the Board operates, provides the majority of its funding in the form of grants
and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Board has with other parties. Grants received from
government depariments are set out in the subjective analysis in note 13 on amounts reported to decision makers.
There are no grant receipts outstanding at 31 March 2014 (see note 25),

Other Local Authorities

Angus, Dundee City and Fife Councils are considered to be related parties of the Board. During 2013/2014, the
Board entered into a number of transactions with Dundee City Council and Fife Council, as detailed below:
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18,

19.

2012/2013 2013/2014

Income  Expenditure Income  Expenditure
£000  £000 £000 £000
Dundee City Council:
{23) - Inlerest Receivable (11) -
- 39 Central Support Services - 52
- 3 Miscellaneous - 6
{23) 42 Total Dundee City Council {11} 58
Fife Council:
- - Miscellaneous - 5
- - Total Fife Council - 5

The following balances existed between the Board and Dundee City Council and Fife Council as at 31 March 2014:

2012/2013 2013/2014
Asset Liability Asset Liability
£000 £000 £000 £000
Dundee City Council:
- 37 Central Support Services - 14
(23) - interest Receivable (11) -
- 3 Miscellaneous (incl. Capital - 173
Works)
(23) 40 Total Dundee City Council {11} 187
Fife Council:
- - Miscellaneous - 5
- - Total Fife Council - 5

ILEASES
The Board as Lessee

The Board held no assels on finance or operating lease during 2013/2014 and, accordingly, there were no lease
rentals paid to lessors during the year (2012/2013: None) or commitments due to lessors in 2013/2014 (2012/2013:
None).

The Beard as Lessor

The Board had entered a three year agreement for the lease of land and property to a third party which ended in
2011. This arrangement has continued on a monthly basis as permitted in the lease agreement. This agreement
is accounted for as an operating lease. In 2013/2014 the Board received rent of £10,213 from this agreement
{2012/2013: £10,213). The present value of minimum lease payments receivable as at the Balance Sheet date are
as follows:

a) Not later than 1 year = £10,213

b} later than 1 year and not later than 5 years = £Nil

¢) later than 5 years = £Nil.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement:

2012/2013 2011/2012

£000 £000
Rental income from investment property 10 10
Direct operating expenses arising from investment (1) {2)
property
Net gain/{loss) | 9 8
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There are no restrictions on the Board's ability to realise the value inherent in its investment properly or on the
Board's right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal.

The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the year:

2012/2013 2013/2014
£000 £000

Balance at start of the year 85 62

Additions:

Purchases & =

Subsequent expenditure - 7

Disposals - -

Net gains/{losses) from fair value adjustments (23) -

Transfers:

to/from Inventories - -

toffrom Property, Plant and Equipment - -

Balance at end of the year 62 62
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements on Balances
Movements in 2013/2014.

Total
Other Land  Vehicles, Property,
and Plant & Infrastructure Assets Under Plant &
Buildings Equip Assets Construction  Equipment
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2013 1,244 770 76,475 5,411 83,900
Additions - 27 329 - 356
Additions - Ramp Work - - - 2,510 2,510
Derecognition — Disposals - - (513) - {513)
Expenditure Not Adding Value - - (39} - (39)
Other movements in Cost or - - - - -
Valuation
At 31 March 2014 1,244 ey 76,252 7,921 86,214
Accumulated Depreciation and
Impairment
At 1 April 2013 42 348 10,335 - 10,725
Depreciation charge 15 51 1,682 - 1,748
Derecognilion — Disposals - - {314) - (314)
At 31 March 2014 57 399 11,703 - 12,159
Net Book Value
At 31 March 2014 1,187 398 64,549 7,921 74,055
At 31 March 2013 1,202 422 66,140 5411 73,175
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Comparative Movements in 2012/2013:

Total
Other Land Vehicles, Property,
and Plant & Infrastructure  Assets Under Plant &
Buildings Equipment Assets Construction Equipment
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2012 1,244 753 66,257 469 68,723
Additions - 20 10,470 - 10,490
Additions - Ramp Work - - 36 4,942 4,978
Derecognition — Disposals - (1) (211) - (212}
Expenditure Not Adding Value - - {77) - (77)
Other movements in Cost or - (2} - - (2)
Valuation
At 31 March 2013 1,244 770 76,475 5,411 83,900
Accumulated Depreciation
and Impairment
At 1 April 2012 28 298 9,029 - 9,355
Depreciation charge 14 50 1,419 - 1,483
Derecognition — Disposals - - (113) - {113)
At 31 March 2013 42 348 10,335 - 10,725
Net Book Value
At 31 March 2013 1,202 422 66,140 5,411 73,175
At 31 March 2012 1,216 455 57,228 469 59,368

Capital Commitments

At 31 March 2014, the Board has entered into a number of contracts for the construction or enhancement of
Property, Plant and Equipment in 2014/2015 and future years, budgeted to cost £397,000. (Simitar commitments
at 31 March 2013 were £445,000). The major commitment is for:

¢  Pier Collision Prolection Works - £389,000

Revaluations

The Authority carries out a rolling pregramme that ensures that all Property, Plant and Equipment required to be
measured at fair value is re-valued at least every five years. All valuations were carried out by Mr Alan Bell BSc
MRICS, Registered Valuer for Dundee City Council's City Development Department. Valuations of land and
buildings were carried out in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the
professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.



21.  CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAPITAL FINANCING

The total amaunt of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below, logether with the resources

that have been used to finance it.

Capital invesiment:
Property, Plant and Equipment

Total Capital Investment

Sources of finance:

Capital receipts

Government grants and other conlributions

Total Sources of Finance

22. INVENTORIES

Balance outstanding at start of year

Recognised as an expense in the year
Other Adjusiments

Balance outstanding at year-end

23, SHORT-TERM DEBTORS

2012/2013 2013/2014

Maintenance

£000 £000

10,490 356

10,430 356

1 -

10,489 356

10,490 356
Total

2012/2013 2013/2014 2012/2013 2013/2014

Materials
£000 E0O0
47
47

£000 £000
47 47 47
19 - 19
1 - 1
67 47 li:I.w ‘

31 March 2013

31 March 2014

£000 £000
l.ocal authorities - a 23 1
Other entities and individuals 12 8
Total 35 19

24.  SHORT-TERM CREDITORS

31 March 2013

31 March 2014

£000 £000
Central government bodies o 345 545
Local authorities 767 198
Other entities and individuals 138 41
Total 1,250 784
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26,

GRANT INCOME

The Board credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Account in 2013/2014:

2012/2013 2013/2014
£000 £000
Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income
Scottish Government Revenue Grant 1,524 1,499
Scottish Government Capital Grant 6,300 500
Dundee City Council Capital Grant 4,978 2,510
Total 12,802 4,509

The Board has £637,000 of Revenue grants, contributions and donations that have yet to be recognised as income
due to them having conditions attached to them that requires the monies or property to be returned to the grant
provider (2012/2013: £336,000).

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The International Accounting Standards Board published a final version of the revised IAS 19 standard, which
applies to the accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. In summary the main changes are:

» removal of the expected return on assets, which is replaced by a net interest cost comprising interest
income on assets and interest expense on the liabilities, which are both calculated with reference to the
discount rate; and

s administration expenses are now accounted for within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement charge. Previously this was a deduction to the actual and expected return on assets.

Restatement is required at the beginning of the earliest period presented. There was no change to net assels or
the brought forward reserves balances as at 1 April 2013.

Reconciliation of adjustments to Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Disclosed Adjustment to Restated
2012/2013 Net Net Exp / 2012/2013 Net
Exp / (Income) (income) Exp / (Income}
£000 £000 £000

Financing & Investment Income & Expenditure (1) a8 87
(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services {9.539 88 {9,451)
Actuarial (Gains) / Losses on Pension Assets / 72 {88) {16)
Liabilities
Other Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 70 88) (12)
Totat Comprehensive Income & Expenditure (9,463) - (9,463)

Reconciliation of adjustment to Movement in Reserves Statement

Disclosed Total  Adjustment to Revised Total
Board Total Board Board
Reserves Reserves Reserves
£000 £000 £000
{Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services (9,539) 88 (9.451)
Other Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 76 (88) (12)
Total Comprehensive Income & Expenditure (9,463) - {9,463)
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Reconciliation of adjustment to Cash Flow Statement

Disclosed Adjustment Restated
2012/2013 £000 2012/2013
£000 £000
Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services (9,539) a8 (9,451)
Adjust net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for (3,037) (88) (3,125)

non cash movements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD AND
THE ACCOUNTS COMMISSION FOR SCOTLAND

We have audiled the financial statements of the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board for the year ended 31 March 2014
set out on pages 10 to 47. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in thelr preparation is
applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and
as interpreted and adapted by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2013-14.

This report is made sofely lo the members of the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board and the Accounts Commission for
Scotland, in accordance with Part VIl of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973. Qur audit work has been
undertaken so that we might slate 1o those two parties those matters we are required lo state to them in an
auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permilied by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board and the Accounts Commission for Scotland,
for this report, or the opinions we have {formed.

Respective responsibilities of the Treasurer and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities on page 15, the Treasurer is responsible for the
preparation of financial statements which give a true and fair view. Our responsibilily is to audit, and express an
opinion on, the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK
and Ireland) as required by the Code of Audit Practice approved by the Accounts Commission for Scotland. Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial staternents

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the body's
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequalely disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Treasurer; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition,
we read all the financial and non- financial information in the statement of accounts to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the
audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications
for our report.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the aftairs of the body as at 31 March 2014 and of its expenditure and
income for the year then ended;

. have been propeily prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2013-14;

. have bean prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government {Scolland) Act 1973 and
the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003.

Opinion on other matiers prescribed by the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973

In our apinion;

. the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has bean properly prepared in accordance with the Local
Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 1985; and

« the information given in the Treasurer's Report for the financial year tor which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD AND
THE ACCOUNTS COMMISSION FOR SCOTLAND (CONTINUED)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing 1o report in respect of the following matters where the Local Government (Scolfland) Act 1973
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

adequate accounting records have not been kept; or

the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records; or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

the Annual Governance Stalement does not comply with Delivering Goad Governance in Local Government;
or

there has been a failure to meet a prescribed financial objective.

— .

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountanis

Saltire Court

20 Caslle Terrace
Edinburgh

EH1 2EG

18 September 2014
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